
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Executive 
Committee 
 
 
 

Mon 7 Dec 
2015 
6.30 pm 
 

Council Chamber 
Town Hall 
Redditch 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken 
or wish to exercise any of the above rights of access to information, 

please contact 
Debbie Parker Jones 

Democratic Services Officer 
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext: 3257 

e.mail:d.parkerjones@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

 



 
 

 
 
 

Executive 

Committee 

 

 

 

Monday, 7th December, 2015 

6.30 pm 

Council Chamber Town Hall 

 
Agenda 

 
Membership: 

 Cllrs: Bill Hartnett (Chair) 
Greg Chance (Vice-
Chair) 
Juliet Brunner 
Brandon Clayton 
John Fisher 
 

Mark Shurmer 
Yvonne Smith 
Debbie Taylor 
Pat Witherspoon 
 

1. Apologies  
To receive the apologies of any Member who is unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
  

2. Declarations of Interest  
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests or Other Disclosable Interests they may have in 
items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of those 
interests. 
 
  

3. Minutes  
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Executive Committee held on 13th October, 2015. 
 
(Minutes attached) 
 
  

(Pages 1 - 6)  

4. Job Evaluation  
To consider the enclosed report from the Head of Business 
Transformation and Organisational Development, updating 
members on the current position regarding job evaluation 
and seeking agreement to implement the new job evaluation 
scheme and pay and grading structure. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

(Pages 7 - 36)  

  

 
 





 

 

 Chair 
 

  
 

EXECUTIVE 

Committee 

 
 

 
 

13th October 2015 
 

MINUTES Present: 

  
Councillor Bill Hartnett (Chair), Councillor Greg Chance (Vice-Chair) and 
Councillors Juliet Brunner, Brandon Clayton, John Fisher (during Minute 
No.’s 42 to 49), Mark Shurmer, Debbie Taylor and Pat Witherspoon 

  

 Officers: 

  

 Derek Allen, Clare Flanagan, Sue Hanley, Kath Manning, Jayne 
Pickering and Judith Willis 
 

 Committee Officers: 
 

 Debbie Parker-Jones 

 
 

40. APOLOGIES  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Yvonne 
Smith. 
 

41. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

42. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Work Programme 
 
It was noted that the following reports, which had originally been 
listed on the Work Programme for consideration at the meeting that 
evening, had been deferred to either the 15th December 2015 or a 
later meeting: 
 

 Housing Business Case; 

 Fees and Charges; 

 Provision of Disabled Car Parking Spaces within Council-
Owned Housing Area; 

 Reorganisation and Change Policy; 

 Update on Medium Term Financial Plan; 

 Health and Safety Policy – Contractor Security; 

 Contractor Safety Policy; and  

 Lone Working Policy. 



  
 

EXECUTIVE 

Committee 

 
 

 

13th October 2015 

 

 
Report Updates – Energy Efficiency Fund 
 
Officers tabled some updates to this report, for consideration at 
Agenda Item 6. 
 

43. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on 
8th September 2015 be agreed as a correct record and signed 
by the Chair. 
 

44. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee received the minutes of the meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 1st September 2015. 
 
It was noted that there were no recommendations to consider. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 1st September 2015 be received and noted. 
 

45. CREATION OF A NEW ENERGY EFFICIENCY FUND FOR 
HOMEOWNERS IN REDDITCH  
 
The Committee received a report which summarised proposals to 
use existing resources to launch a new Energy Efficiency Fund to 
help homeowners in Redditch improve the energy efficiency of their 
properties, helping them to heat their homes more affordably and 
reliably and also producing carbon savings. 
 
Officers tabled the following report amendments, all of which were 
agreed by Members: 
 

 an amendment to recommendation 3 for the scheme to be 
reviewed six months after its launch; 

 addition of a paragraph at 3.8 of the report to read: “The 
scheme is for homeowners in Redditch.  Council tenants 
should seek help with energy efficiency by contacting staff at 
their Locality Housing Office.”; 

 deletion of the references to assisting with energy efficient 
light fittings and bulbs contained in the first section of the list 
of measures at Appendix 1 and in paragraph 3.9 of the 
report; and 



  
 

EXECUTIVE 

Committee 

 
 

 

13th October 2015 

 

 an addition to the first section of the list of measures in 
Appendix 1, with reference to the financial support available, 
that a household financial criterion of £250 would apply 
towards the costs of works for those households in receipt of 
qualifying benefits.  Those households earning below the 
average Redditch household income would automatically be 
making their own financial contribution. 

 
Introducing a financial contribution requirement to the scheme 
would ensure that the Council’s scheme mirrored the approach 
undertaken within the current Affordable Warmth element of the 
Energy Company Obligation (ECO), where a minimum £250 
contribution was required for broken boilers.  Where Redditch 
residents could benefit from existing ECO funding streams, Act on 
Energy would help them access such assistance.  The Council’s 
energy efficiency scheme would provide support for those 
households which did not qualify for such funding streams, to 
prevent them from falling into further difficulty. 
 
Introducing a financial contribution for all households benefitting 
from the Energy Efficiency Fund to resolve broken boilers should 
enable the Council to focus on those households which did not 
qualify for assistance from other schemes.  This approach would 
also maximise the effectiveness of the scheme in terms of the 
number of households which could be supported.        
 
Officers stressed that the Council was not trying to replace the 
current energy efficiency options which existed outside of the 
Council, and that the Fund would only be used where there were no 
other available options or where people were in crisis.  The Head of 
Community Services would have discretion to consider applications 
which fell outside of the normal criteria where ‘exceptional 
circumstances’ applied.  Officers felt that they would learn from the 
first six months of implementation of the scheme and that a review 
of the scheme after that stage would therefore be pertinent.      
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) an Energy Efficiency Fund for homeowners in Redditch 

be launched and delivered between November 2015 and 
November 2018; 

 
2) authority be delegated to the Head of Community 

Services to finalise the inclusion of the Energy Efficiency 
Fund within the existing Service Level Agreement (SLA) 
with Act on Energy; and 
 



  
 

EXECUTIVE 

Committee 

 
 

 

13th October 2015 

 

3) authority be delegated to the Head of Community 
Services to finalise details of the approved scheme and, 
in consultation with the Portfolio Holders for Housing and 
the Local Environment, to make minor amendments to the 
scheme and review the scheme six months after it is 
launched. 

 
RECOMMENDED that   
 
the remaining £17k Warmer Worcestershire capital grant funds 
be transferred to fund the revenue schemes detailed in the 
report.   
 

46. CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION STRATEGY  
 
Members were asked to endorse the county-wide Child Sexual 
Exploitation (CSE) Strategy 2015-17, and to consider how the 
Council could contribute to its achievement.  It was noted that the 
Executive Committee could resolve on this matter, which was not 
apparent from the report recommendation. 
 
Officers highlighted the key elements of the Strategy and explained 
that the CSE Pathway was unique as it allowed for the reporting of 
non-child specific concerns, for example where there were 
concerns in relation to particular premises rather than individuals. 
 
Members noted the work being undertaken by the Council as 
detailed at paragraph 3.12 of the report, and the roles that the 
Redditch Partnership and North Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership and Tasking Group would play in this. 
 
Given the importance of the subject matter and the national issues 
which had emerged in recent times, Members felt that all councillors 
should be strongly encouraged to attend safeguarding training as 
part of their annual training programme.  It was noted that a copy of 
the Strategy had also been placed in the political group rooms for 
Members’ information.   
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the Worcestershire Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy 2015-
2017 and the Council’s contribution as outlined in paragraph 
3.12 of the report, be endorsed. 
 
 
 
 



  
 

EXECUTIVE 

Committee 

 
 

 

13th October 2015 

 

47. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2016/17 - 2018/19 - BUDGET 
ASSUMPTIONS  
 
The Committee considered a report, for recommendation to full 
Council, which set out the budget assumptions to be used in 
preparing the detailed 2016/17 budget and provisional budgets for 
2017/18 and 2018/19.  A typographical error in the report 
recommendation was noted, which should have referred to the 
assumptions detailed in paragraph 3.7 and not 3.5 of the report. 
 
Officers highlighted the key aspects of the report and advised that a 
number of recommendations from the Council’s External Auditors, 
Grant Thornton, would be addressed by ensuring that robust 
assumptions and a transparent planned approach was undertaken 
when setting the budget.   
 
Members had previously agreed that the following principles would 
be the focus of the Medium Term Financial Plan: 
 

 reduce enabling costs; 

 identifying waste and removing this from the system and its 
associated costs; and 

 design new systems for delivery to meet customer demand. 
 
Officers clarified that enabling costs covered anybody who did not 
deliver a front line service to the public, from supervisor level 
upwards. 
 
Members noted that the budget forecast had been based on a 
number of assumptions, known levels of expenditure and 
anticipated levels of resources.  Final confirmation of the 
assumptions would not be known until December, when the Council 
would receive details of the Provisional Funding Settlement from 
central government.  Officers explained the most significant risks to 
the budget projections and stated that whilst it was known that the 
Council would lose £1.5m of government funding over the next 3 
years, it was not yet known whether the cuts would be front-loaded. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
the revenue assumptions detailed in paragraph 3.7 of the 
report be incorporated into the budget setting process. 
 

48. MINUTES / REFERRALS - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE, EXECUTIVE PANELS ETC.  
 
There were no additional referrals for the Committee to consider. 
 



  
 

EXECUTIVE 

Committee 

 
 

 

13th October 2015 

 

 
49. ADVISORY PANELS - UPDATE REPORT  

 
It was noted that a Planning Advisory Panel meeting had taken 
place earlier that evening and that the next meeting was planned for 
December. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
and closed at 7.48 pm 
 
 
         …………………………………….. 
            Chair 



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 7th December 2015 
 
JOB EVALUATION  
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Fisher 

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Deb Poole 

Ward(s) Affected N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted N/A 

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

To update Members as to the current position regarding Job Evaluation and to 
seek agreement to implement the new Job Evaluation Scheme and Pay and 
Grading Structure.                                           
                                                                                          

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Executive is requested to RECOMMEND to Council the approval of: 
 

1) Commencement of formal consultation with the Trade Unions with a view to 
reaching a Collective Agreement to implement the National Joint Council Job 
Evaluation Scheme;                                                                                 

 
 and 
 

2) Should a Collective Agreement not be achieved, commencement of a 
Dismissal and Re-engagement process. 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
Financial Implications 

 
3.1 The expected implementation date is September 2016. Affected employees will 

receive 2 years’ back pay or 2 years’ salary protection depending on whether 
their grade increases or decreases under the new structure. 

 
3.2 The expected impact of the new Job Evaluation scheme, based on current 

staffing arrangements, is that: 
 
45 employees will see a grade increase 
32 employees will see a grade decrease   

 
3.3 Based on current costings the pay protection and back pay will be no greater 

than £300k. There is a provision set aside for payment of back pay and pay 
protection will be included in the budgets for 2 years from date of 
implementation. 

 
3.4 There will be associated costs of appeals, however these cannot be factored in 

at present and therefore members will be advised of an approximate cost during 
the budget projections. 



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 7th December 2015 
 

Legal Implications 
 
3.5 Job Evaluation is a key element of the Single Status Agreement of the National 

Joint Council (NJC) for local Government Services. 
 
3.6 The Council has a legal duty under Single Status to introduce a robust and 

equitable Job Evaluation scheme which is compliant with Equal Pay legislation.  
           Failure to implement the Job Evaluation Scheme will leave the Authority open to 

ongoing Equal Pay claims (although it should be pointed out that introduction of 
such a scheme does not obviate the need to deal with any potential, pre-existing 
claims; it merely mitigates the risk of claims going forward). 

 
3.7 A formal consultation period will be required with the Trade Unions in order to 

negotiate a Collective Agreement.  If a Collective Agreement is reached the new 
Pay and Grading Structure will be implemented for all Redditch Borough Council 
employees within an agreed timescale.   

 
3.8 If a Collective Agreement cannot be reached, the only alternative open to the 

Council will be to undertake a further period of individual consultation during 
which notice would be served to dismiss and re-engage staff on new Terms and 
Conditions of employment, including a new pay structure based on the 
implementation of JE.  

 
3.9 Research indicates that most employees will agree to sign new contracts in this 

particular scenario, or will indicate tacit acceptance by continuing to attend work 
on, and after, the date of implementation.  

 
3.10 Only in the event that an employee refuses to work on the first day of their new 

contract (implementation day) would they be deemed to be “dismissed”. 
 
3.11 Although it is unlikely that employees would choose this route, there are reported 

examples of employees refusing new contracts and pursuing claims in respect of 
dismissal, however, these are, more often than not, unsuccessful; particularly 
where the purpose of the changes has been to implement a scheme designed to 
ensure fairness in pay. 

 
3.12 Whilst a Collective Agreement would be the preferred implementation route, 

there have been early indications from Unison that this may be difficult to 
achieve. This is, however, not unexpected and, in recent years, many local 
authorities have had to use dismissal and re-engagement to implement similar 
changes.    
 

3.13 Whilst Dismissal and re-engagement is more unsettling for employees, it remains 
the case that this may be the only option available to the Council to implement 
the changes they have committed to introduce. 

 
3.14 This report is exempt in accordance with S.100 1 of the Local Government Act 

1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006, as it contains information relating to consultations or negotiations in 
connection with labour relations matters arising between the authority and its 



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 7th December 2015 
 

employees.  For this reason it is felt that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
Service / Operational Implications 

 
3.15 The 2004 National Pay Settlement committed every Council in England and 

Wales to carry out a Local Pay and Grading Review for all employees covered 
by the 1997 Single Status Agreement.  Job Evaluation is intended to ensure that 
employees are paid fairly and in accordance with the Equal Pay Act 1970 as 
amended by the Equal Pay (Amendment) Regulations 1983.    

 
3.16 This agreement reflected the need to review pay in local government and the 

need to look at outdated types of pay which may, in some cases, have favoured 
male dominated job groups. 

 
3.17 A clear principle running through the Single Status Agreement was that it should 

be implemented by working in partnership with recognised trade unions. 
 

3.18 The Council invited Unison, GMB and UCATT to engage with Job Evaluation. 
UNISON have been fully engaged as members of the Joint Working Project 
Team including extensive discussions with both local and regional trade union 
representatives regarding job evaluation and the new pay and grading model. 
 

3.19 A Steering Group was established at the beginning of the project involving the 
Director of Finance and Resources, Human Resources and the Branch 
Secretary from Unison.  Although UCATT explained that they did not support Job 
Evaluation, they have been involved in the Steering Group as they felt that being 
aware of progress in this regard would useful in maintaining employee relations.  
The Steering Group has provided a forum for raising and addressing issues as 
they have arisen to ensure that all such issues are resolved amicably, as far as 
was possible. 
 

3.20 A process to evaluate all jobs within the Council was undertaken.  This data was 
then used to develop a new pay model for the Council. 

 
3.21 Different versions of the pay structure have been developed and discussed at 

various Steering Groups, prior to the attached final proposed pay structure. 
 

3.22 Members of the Steering Group have met with representatives from UNISON 
National Office to update them on the Council’s position and give them the 
opportunity to raise any issues in order to reach a resolution wherever possible. 
 
 

3.23 As the process has taken some considerable time to reach this stage, due to 
various factors, this has been a distraction to staff and managers and the cause 
of some unrest amongst employees.  

 
3.24 In moving forward with the Council’s proposals to implement the NJC Job 

Evaluation Scheme it is hoped that there will now be certainty for employees in 
regard to their pay; that employees will have a clear and transparent pay 



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 7th December 2015 
 

structure (essential for recruitment purposes); ensure that any back pay that is 
owed is paid as quickly as possible; and that employees whose pay will reduce 
under the Scheme are protected for a sufficient period to enable them to plan 
their finances. 
 
Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 
3.25 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken and provided to 

UNISON as part of the informal consultation.  The EIA is attached at Appendix 2. 
 
3.26 The implementation of Job Evaluation will minimise the risk associated with 

Equal Pay claims and will provide a model for the Council to assess all posts in a 
robust and efficient way. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 If Job Evaluation is not implemented there will remain a very real risk of ongoing 

Equal Pay claims. Implementation of the new Job Evaluation Scheme will help 
limit any future claims, although the potential for existing claims to be pursued is 
not eradicated.   

 
4.2 The morale of the workforce is likely to be further, detrimentally, affected if the 

implementation of Job Evaluation is delayed any longer, due to the uncertainty 
surrounding levels of pay going forward. 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
Appendix 1 - Pay Model 
Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Assessment 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Becky Talbot Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager 
email: becky.talbot@redditchandbromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel.: 01527 64252 ext 3885 



49 42,957 22.2658

48 42,053 21.7972

47 11 41,140 21.3240

46 40,217 20.8455

45 39,267 20.3531

44 38,405 19.9063

43 10 37,483 19.4284

42 36,571 18.9557

41 35,662 18.4846

40 34,746 18.0098

39 9 33,857 17.5490

38 32,778 16.9897

37 31,846 16.5066

36 30,978 16.0567

35 8 30,178 15.6421

34 29,558 15.3207

33 28,746 14.8998

32 27,924 14.4738

31 7 27,123 14.0586

30 26,293 13.6284

29 25,440 13.1862

28 24,472 12.6845

27 6 23,698 12.2833

26 22,937 11.8889

25 22,212 11.5131

24 21,530 11.1596

23 5 20,849 10.8066

22 20,253 10.4977

21 19,742 10.2328

20 19,048 9.8731

19 4 18,376 9.5248

18 17,714 9.1816

17 17,372 9.0044

16 16,969 8.7955

15 3 16,572 8.5897

14 16,231 8.4130

13 15,941 8.2626

12 15,523 8.0460

11 2 15,207 7.8822

10 14,338 7.4318

9 14,075 7.2954

8 1 13,871 7.1897

7 13,715 7.1088

6 13,614 7.0557

5 13,500 6.9974

.

Hourly RateSCP
Salary as at 

01/01/2015





 
 

Client Confidential 
- 1 - 

 

 

 

 

Redditch Borough Council  

Gender Equality Impact Assessment for the Proposed 

Pay and Grading Structure. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Andrew Worth 
Principal  Reward Consultant 
NorthgateArinso Reward Solutions 
November 2015 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 2 - 

 

 

Contents 
 

2 Scope of Report ........................................................................................................................... - 3 - 

3  Composition of the Workforce ................................................................................................... - 5 - 

4 Choice of Evaluation Scheme ...................................................................................................... - 6 - 

6 Proposed Pay and Grading Structure ........................................................................................ - 10 - 

8 Gender Pay Gap ........................................................................................................................ - 18 - 

9 Proximity Analysis ..................................................................................................................... - 19 - 

10    Policies ....................................................................................................................................... - 23 - 

11    Future Monitoring ..................................................................................................................... - 23 - 

12.   Conclusion ................................................................................................................................. - 24 - 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 3 - 

 

1 Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 Like all local authority organisations Redditch Borough Council (Redditch) has been required 

to undertake a pay and grading review. This requirement arose from the ‘Single Status’ 

agreement which was agreed nationally as part of the 1997 national pay agreement and 

subject of a further national agreement in 2004.  

 

1.2 With the increasing importance of equal pay within the public sector and across the 

economy as a whole, it is essential that whenever such a review is undertaken, the proposed 

outcomes are subject to a gender impact assessment. In addition, it should also be 

recognised that the integrity of the new pay and grading arrangements are maintained and 

that regular equal pay audits are undertaken in the future as part of the review and 

maintenance process.  

  

1.3 The purpose of this report is therefore to assess the gender impact and any equality 

implications arising from Redditch’s proposals. The proposals have been developed through 

joint working with the trade unions. 

 

1.4 The report is based on a data set provided by Redditch in November 2015 and replaces a 

previous dataset from May 2015. All employees in Leisure and Culture services have been 

excluded from this report at the joint request of the Trade Unions and Council.  

 

1.5 Further legal advice maybe required in relation to some of the issues referred to in this 

report. 

2 Scope of Report 

 

2.1 The pay and grading review affects the majority of the overall workforce including all 

employees who are employed under the terms of the 1997 national agreement for Local 

Government Services. This includes all National Joint Council (NJC) employees.  

 

2.2 The report is based on the proposals developed locally with the trade unions. The analyses 

included within this report are based on the details of 443 employees undertaking 149 

discreet jobs. Vacant posts have not been included in the analysis for this report.  

 

2.3 This report considers a range of issues including; 

 

 The choice of job evaluation scheme 

 The job evaluation process 

 The proposed pay and grading structure 

 Allowances 

 Gender pay gap 

 Proximity analysis 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 4 - 

 

 

2.4 In addition, detailed reports have also been produced that illustrate the implications for 

employees based on gender and the proposed grading structure.  For clarification purposes: 

 

 Red circle = a job that will see a reduction in basic pay 

 Green circle = a job that will see an increase in basic pay 

 White circle = a job where current basic pay levels will be maintained 

 

2.5 The statistical analysis includes the following breakdowns:  

 

 Red, Green and White Circles by Gender 

 Red, Green and White Circles by Gender and Grade 

 Red Excess and Green Costs 

 Headroom Winners and Losers. 

 Proximity – to grade above and grade below. 

 Gender Pay Gap 

 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 5 - 

 

3  Composition of the Workforce 

 

3.1 In terms of considering the equality impact of the proposed structure, it is important to 

understand the current composition of the workforce. Based on the table below it is evident 

that the workforce has more female employees accounting for 76.07% of all NJC employees 

with 59.05% of female employees being in part time employment.  

 

3.2 Unless otherwise stated all financial information is based on full time equivalent (FTE) 

analysis in order to determine costs at a full time rate.  However, where ‘actual’ figures are 

pertinent, these are shown accordingly 

 

3.3 The largest proportion of employees are in Housing Services (34.1%) and Community 

Services (30.7%). The gender composition of the workforce should be considered when 

reviewing the statistical analysis contained in the Gender pay gap section of the report.  

 

Composition of the Workforce               

  
Total 

Employees Male Female Male Female 

Service       
Full 

Time 
Part 
Time 

Full 
Time 

Part 
Time 

    
 

  
  

    

BUSINESS TRANSFORMA & OD 15 0 15 0 0 9 6 

CHIEF EXECS UNIT 14 1 13 1 0 7 6 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 136 26 110 15 11 25 85 

CUSTOMER SERVICES 88 11 77 7 4 43 34 

FINANCIAL SERVICES 23 3 20 2 1 11 9 

HOUSING SERVICES 151 62 89 59 3 34 55 

PLANNING & REGENERATION 16 3 13 1 2 9 4 

    
 

  
  

    

Grand Total 443 106 337 85 21 138 199 

% of Gender       80.19% 19.81% 40.95% 59.05% 

% of Overall Workforce   23.93% 76.07% 19.19% 4.74% 31.15% 44.92% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 6 - 

 

4 Choice of Evaluation Scheme   

4.1 The choice of a suitable job evaluation scheme is essential to the successful outcome of a  pay 
and grading review such as that undertaken by the Council. As part of the 1997 national 
agreement the national employer’s organisation and trade unions developed the NJC scheme 
which has been used for the majority of jobs across the Council up to and including Scp 49.  

 
4.2 The NJC scheme is considered to be compliant with the criteria originally established by the 

Equal Opportunities Commission (now part of the Equalities and Human Rights Commission) for 
bias free job evaluation.  The NJC scheme was specifically designed to be used by local authority 
based organisations for such pay and grading reviews and designed to take account of equal 
pay requirements.  
 

4.3 The following table lists the factors that are included in the NJC scheme which exist to a greater 
or lesser extent in all jobs. 

  

Factor Levels Points per level Weighting 

% 

Knowledge* 8 20  16.3 

Mental Skills 6 13 7.8 

Communication Skills 6 13 7.8 

Physical Skills 5 13 6.5 

Initiative and Independence 8 13 10.4 

Physical Demands 5 10 5.0 

Mental Demands 5 10 5.0 

Emotional Demands 5 10 5.0 

Responsibility for People 6 13 7.8 

Responsibility for Supervision 6 13 7.8 

Responsibility for Financial Resources 6 13 7.8 

Responsibility for Physical Resources 6 13 7.8 

Working Conditions 5 10 5.0 

 
* Levels 6 to 8 increase by 21 points  

4.4 A factor level analysis has been undertaken of all evaluations completed using the NJC 
scheme. This shows that the full range of all factors has been applied.  

  
4.5 The overall distribution of factor levels appears consistent with the typical outcomes of such 

a review in relation to the job population. The score distribution across evaluated roles 

within Redditch would suggest the range of evaluations is consistent with other Authorities 

in the application of the scheme.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 7 - 

 

5. Job Evaluation Process  

 

5.1 Having selected an appropriate job evaluation scheme it is essential that effective local 

procedures are developed so that the scheme can be applied in a fair, consistent and 

transparent way.  Following discussions with Redditch, it is evident that the procedures put 

in place locally have been developed jointly with the trades unions taking account of the 

guidance and principles incorporated into the NJC scheme. 

 

5.2 Prior to the start of the review, the Council and trades unions reached agreement on the 

overall approach to the review in 2008. It is clear from the agreement that the project would 

be undertaken as a joint exercise co-ordinated by a Project Manager, Head of Human 

Resources and a Job Analyst, provided externally by West Midlands Councils with significant 

experience in the NJC evaluation scheme.  

 

5.3 Prior to starting the full review a pilot exercise was undertaken. This was carried out using 

the paper based NJC job evaluation scheme and face to face job evaluations to compare the 

two approached. Subsequently the Council made the decision to pilot the computerised NJC 

scheme known as Gauge. The purpose of this stage was to test the application of Gauge and 

ensure that the processes that had been developed and agreed locally were appropriate. 

This also created the opportunity to test the Gauge ‘Help Text’ and develop appropriate local 

conventions that reflected the specific requirements of Redditch in a local context. 

 

5.4 The overall application of the JE process is shown below: 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 8 - 

 

 

 

 

Staff Briefings –newsletter to all staff explaining 

the process and departmental management 

briefings.  

 

↓ 

 

Issue of Job Questionnaires  

 

 

↓ 

 

Analysis of Questionnaire by analysts which 

included interviews. Job Interviews could be 

attended by Union representation where 

requested.  

 

↓ 

Question Trace and  

Job Overview Issued to post holder for any 

comment on the evaluation 

 

↓ 

 

 

 

Results were then passed  to a Sorethumbing 

Group for moderation 

 

 

↓ 

 

Formal Appeal Process 

 

 

 Job Evaluation outcomes were audited and 

passed where required to an audit meeting 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 9 - 

 

 

 

 

5.5 A standard briefing was developed which all employees were invited to attend. The briefing 

jointly delivered clearly outlined the reason for the review and how it would be conducted. 

In addition, further guidance was given on how to complete the agreed Job Questionnaire, 

information about the NJC evaluation scheme and the role of all those involved in the 

process. Throughout the review there has been regular communication with employees 

using a variety of methods including dedicated newsletters, Frequently Asked Questions, 

Employee E-mail, internal newspaper articles along with an e-mail address for employee 

questions. 

 

5.6  In addition, before, during and after the evaluations were completed a Joint Steering Group 

was established to have an overall input into the process to ensure queries, issues and other 

JE related matters were dealt with promptly. 

 

5.7 Following briefing sessions, job holders were issued with an agreed Job Questionnaire which 

was developed to assist job holders to provide as much information about their role in order 

that the post could be analysed in some depth. The development of the questionnaire was 

an important element in ensuring that all job holders were given the same information 

about the scheme and sufficient time to consider the requirements of their job in terms of 

the 13 factors within the NJC scheme.  

 

5.8 As part of the process it was agreed that job holders had to meet and agree the 

questionnaire with their line manager which was then signed by the line manager before the 

job interview meeting took place.  Where there was more than one job holder, 

representative(s) were responsible for completing the questionnaire but all job holders were 

given the opportunity to input into the process and received a copy of the overview report. 

All employees were given a copy of the Question Trace and Job Overview following the 

evaluation which has ensured that all job holders have been involved in the process and 

have the ability to seek an audit review or formal appeal once the pay and grading model 

had been implemented.   

 

5.9 All evaluations were subject to moderation again based on a procedure and protocols 

agreed with the trade unions. Any changes or amendments to the original evaluation score 

were recorded on a factor by factor basis. Once this process was completed job holders were 

sent a copy of the Question Trace and Job Overview relating to their job based on the 

evidence given by the job holder. All overview reports were distributed to job holders. Job 

holders were given the opportunity to seek a review of the evaluation either in terms of 

disagreeing with the statements in the report or that the overview report did not provide an 

accurate overview of their job. 

 

5.10 It is clear that all stages of the overall process have been agreed with the trade unions and 

that the process has directly involved job holders, managers and the trade unions.   



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 10 - 

 

6 Proposed Pay and Grading Structure 

 

6.1 A series of proposed pay and grading structures have been developed and tested and 

consulted on with the trade unions. Further discussions with the trade unions have taken 

place in developing the final proposals that have been reviewed as part of this assessment.  

The principal features of the proposed structure are as follows: 

 

 Eleven grades of between 5 and 6 incremental points or 4 to 5 incremental steps to 

reach the grade maximum. 

 The proposed grading structure applies to all employees within the NJC for Local 

Government Services and Craft workers. 

 The pay spine has been developed using the agreed national pay spine from scale 
point 6 to scale point 49. 

 Incorporation of some overlaps and abutted grades in the structure which has the 

effect of reducing the number of employees that will be red circled and therefore 

require pay protection. 

 

 

6.2 The proposed pay structure is shown in the tables below. 

 

 

Proposed Pay and Grading Structure Increments 

Grade 
Minimum 

Score 
Maximum 

Score 
Minimum 

SCP 
Minimum 

Salary 
Maximum 

SCP 
Maximum 

Salary 
Points Steps 

Grade 1   227 6 13614 10 14338 5 4 

Grade 2 228 289 9 14075 14 16231 6 5 

Grade 3 290 340 13 15941 18 17714 6 5 

Grade 4 341 392 17 17372 22 20253 6 5 

Grade 5 393 445 21 19742 26 22937 6 5 

Grade 6 446 492 25 22212 30 26293 6 5 

Grade 7 493 549 29 25440 34 29558 6 5 

Grade 8 550 611 33 28746 38 32778 6 5 

Grade 9 612 674 37 31846 42 36571 6 5 

Grade 10 675 741 41 35662 46 40217 6 5 

Grade 11 742 ----- 45 39267 49 42957 5 4 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 11 - 

 

 

6.3 The following table shows the distribution and value of increments within each of the proposed 

grades. 

 

Grade Increments and values 

 
1 2 3 4 5 6 

Grade 1 13,614 13,715 13,871 14,075 14,338 
 

Grade 2 14,075 14,338 15,207 15,523 15,941 16,231 

Grade 3 15,941 16,231 16,572 16,969 17,372 17,714 

Grade 4 17,372 17,714 18,376 19,048 19,742 20,253 

Grade 5 19,742 20,253 20,849 21,530 22,212 22,937 

Grade 6 22,212 22,937 23,698 24,472 25,440 26,293 

Grade 7 25,440 26,293 27,123 27,924 28,746 29,558 

Grade 8 28,746 29,558 30,178 30,978 31,846 32,778 

Grade 9 31,846 32,778 33,857 34,746 35,662 36,571 

Grade 10 35,662 36,571 37,483 38,405 39,267 40,217 

Grade 11 39,267 40,217 41,140 42,053 42,957 
 

 

6.4 In terms of the proposed structure, the number of grades represents a significant reduction 

from the current range of possible grades. Under the current structure there are over 40 

variations of grades this includes some career grade arrangements in the new structure 

there are just 11. This is important in that it is more likely that with fewer grades, the grade 

attached to an individual job is linked to a consistent job evaluation outcome as opposed to 

a range of grades being applied to any one job.  

 

6.5 The proposed grading structure includes 11 grades with between 5 and 6 increments (or 

between 4 and 5 incremental steps).   

 

6.6 With the use of incremental grades for all NJC employees, some Councils have also 

considered introducing a greater element of performance related incremental progression.   

 

6.7 Incremental progression will continue on an annual basis within Redditch and under the 

structure will take an employee a maximum of 5 years to reach the top of the grade which is 

consistent with the upper level of the recommended timeframe for service based pay 

structures.  

 

6.8  The following table shows the distribution of jobs and job holders by proposed grade. The 
distribution is typical in that there are a smaller number of jobs at the lower end of the 
proposed structure but typically this includes those jobs that are more populated than the 
jobs at the upper end of the structure which tend to be undertaken by individuals.  

 
 
 
 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 12 - 

 

 

Distribution of Jobs and Job 
Holders       

Proposed 
Grade 

Total Job 
Holders 

% of Total 
Job Holders 

Job Count % of Total 
Jobs 

Grade 1 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

Grade 2 12 2.71% 2 1.34% 

Grade 3 79 17.83% 24 16.11% 

Grade 4 70 15.80% 18 12.08% 

Grade 5 118 26.64% 28 18.79% 

Grade 6 91 20.54% 29 19.46% 

Grade 7 37 8.35% 24 16.11% 

Grade 8 28 6.32% 16 10.74% 

Grade 9 4 0.90% 4 2.68% 

Grade 10 4 0.90% 4 2.68% 

Grade 11 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

Grand Total 443   149   

 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9  The distribution of male and female employees by proposed grade shows a very similar pattern 

to that of the workforce as a whole.  82.49% of female employees and 86.79% of male 
employees are in grades 2 to 6. Grades 7 to 10 are occupied by 17.51% of the female population 
and 13.21% of the male population.  

 
 
 
6.10 The overall proposal includes clear assimilation arrangements which will apply to all 

employees. An assessment of the numbers of red, white and green circles is included in the 

tables.  

 

White circles – employees whose current spinal point is within the new grade will remain on 

the same point at the time of assimilation 

  

Green Circles – employees whose current spinal point is below the minimum of the new 

grade will be placed on the minimum point at the time of assimilation 

 

Red circles – employees whose current spinal point is above the proposed grade will be 

placed on the maximum of the new grade with pay protection for a period of no more than 

24 months. 

 

 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 13 - 

 

 

 

6.11 The principal findings are as follows: 

 

 In overall terms, 7.22% of the workforce will be ‘red circled’ based on basic pay. In 

terms of gender 8.61% of female and 2.83% of male employees will be affected in 

this way. 

 

 10.16% of the workforce will be ‘green circled’ and will receive an immediate 

increase in their basic pay as a result of the proposed structure being implemented. 

9.79% of female employees and 11.32% of male employees will be affected in this 

way. 

 

 82.62% of the workforce will not have basic pay affected initially by the proposed 

grading structure with percentages of male (85.85%) and female (81.6%) employees 

affected in this way, however, as a result of the new structure a proportion of these 

staff may have increased progression through the new grade. 

 

6.12 The following tables provide more detailed information on the distribution of green, red and 

white circles by gender. 

 

Percentage of Green, White and Red Circles           

Gender 
Total 

Employees 

Green White Red 

Employees 

% of 
Employees 
in Gender Employees 

% of 
Employees 
in Gender Employees 

% of 
Employees 
in Gender 

F 337 33 9.79% 275 81.60% 29 8.61% 

M 106 12 11.32% 91 85.85% 3 2.83% 

Grand Total 443 45 10.16% 366 82.62% 32 7.22% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 14 - 

 

      Green Circles  White Circles Red Circles 

Proposed 
Grade 

Gender 
Total 
Job 

Holders 

Job 
Holders  

% of 
Job 

Holders  

Job 
Holders  

% of Job 
Holders  

Job 
Holders  

% of 
Job 

Holders  

Grade 2 

F 9   0.00% 9 100.00%   0.00% 

M 3   0.00% 3 100.00%   0.00% 

Total 12   0.00% 12 100.00%   0.00% 

Grade 3 

F 65 22 33.85% 40 61.54% 3 4.62% 

M 14   0.00% 13 92.86% 1 7.14% 

Total 79 22 27.85% 53 67.09% 4 5.06% 

Grade 4 

F 64 4 6.25% 59 92.19% 1 1.56% 

M 6   0.00% 6 100.00%   0.00% 

  70 4 5.71% 65 92.86% 1 1.43% 

Grade 5 

F 101 5 4.95% 85 84.16% 11 10.89% 

M 17 2 11.76% 15 88.24%   0.00% 

Total 118 7 5.93% 100 84.75% 11 9.32% 

Grade 6 

F 39   0.00% 36 92.31% 3 7.69% 

M 52 9 17.31% 41 78.85% 2 3.85% 

Total 91 9 9.89% 77 84.62% 5 5.49% 

Grade 7 

F 28   0.00% 23 82.14% 5 17.86% 

M 9 1 11.11% 8 88.89%   0.00% 

Total 37 1 2.70% 31 83.78% 5 13.51% 

Grade 8 

F 24 2 8.33% 18 75.00% 4 16.67% 

M 4   0.00% 4 100.00%   0.00% 

Total 28 2 7.14% 22 78.57% 4 14.29% 

Grade 9 
F 4   0.00% 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 

Total 4   0.00% 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 

Grade 10  
F 3   0.00% 3 100.00%   0.00% 

M 1   0.00% 1 100.00%   0.00% 

  Total 4   0.00% 4 100.00%   0.00% 

Total   443 45 10.16% 366 82.62% 32 7.22% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.13 The following table illustrates the average values by gender of both green circle costs and 

red circle excess. The average increase in terms of those employees that will be green circled 

and receive an immediate increase in pay is higher for female employee’s. The average 

actual decrease is also higher for female employees.  



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 15 - 

 

 

Average Actual  Value of Red Excess – Basic Pay Protection 

Gender Job Holders Average Value 

Female  29 2050 

Male 3 1825 

Total/Overall Average 32 2029 

 

 

Average Actual  Value of Green Shortfall  

Gender Job Holders Average Value 

Female 33 1118 

Male 12 2349 

Total/Overall Average 45 1447 

 

 

 

6.14 A detailed analysis below shows the average red circle loss by proposed grade 

 

 

Average Actual Red circle loss  by Grade and Gender ( Basic pay) 

Proposed Grade Males 
Average 

Decrease (£) 
Females 

Average Decrease 
(£) 

Grade 1 
    

Grade 2 
    

Grade 3 1 3816 3 2,738 

Grade 4   1 1959 

Grade 5   11 2,004 

Grade 6 2 830 3 1908 

Grade 7 
  

5 1100 

Grade 8 
  

4 2,655 

Grade 9 
  

2 2,696 

Grade 10    
 

Grade 11 
    

Grand Total 3 1,825 29 2,050 

 

 

The impact of abutted and overlapping grades 

 

6.15 As stated the proposed grading structure includes a number of overlapping grades where 

the maximum of the lower grade is the same as the second scp in the grade above. 

 

6.16 However, it is clear that the use of overlapping grades has been adopted for organisational 

reasons as without this approach the number of red circled employees would increase to an 

unacceptable level.  



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 16 - 

 

 

6.17 The following table shows the impact of adopting abutted grades throughout the structure 

based on removing an incremental point from the top of the existing overlapping grades. As 

can be seen the number of red circled employees will increase to 89(20.09 %) an increase of 

36. The number of female employees increases from 29 (8.61%) of the female workforce to 

79 (23.44%). Similarly there would also be an increase in terms of the number of male 

employees from 3 (2.83%) to 10 (9.34%) who would be red circled. 

 

Percentage of Gender by Green, Red and White Circles - Fully Abutted Structure 

Gender 
Total 

Employees 

Green White Red 

Employees 
% of 

Employees 
in Gender 

Employees 
% of 

Employees in 
Gender 

Employees 
% of 

Employees 
in Gender 

Female 337 33 9.79% 225 66.77% 79 23.44% 

Male 106 12 11.31% 84 79.25% 10 9.34% 

Grand 
Total 

443 45 8.66% 309 69.75% 89 20.09% 

 

6.18 The average actual protected amount and therefore loss to employees would decrease for 

female employees due to the increase numbers of red circles with the average protection for 

female employees reducing from £2050 to £1447 and the average protection for male 

employees reducing from £1825 to £1316 with the removal of the overlapping increments.  

 

6.19 The use overlapping grades increases the potential for challenge arising from the proposed 

structure. Although it could be considered that a fully abutted structure would significantly 

reduce the potential challenge. The above tables demonstrate that this approach would 

potentially be unacceptable from an organisational perspective as the number of  red circles 

or employees requiring pay protection would more than double from 7.22% to 20.09% of the 

workforce. 

 

Headroom Analysis 

 

6.20 In addition to the assessment described above, a headroom analysis has also been 

undertaken which looks at any change to the maximum salary in terms of basic pay.  This 

occurs where an employee’s pay may not be affected immediately but the new maximum 

salary they receive is less than that they could achieve at present. This following analysis 

excludes those employees who are red circled.  

 

6.21 As indicated above, employees are either considered as red, green or white circled. Those 

red circled will eventually see a reduction in their pay based on the extent that they are 

currently paid in excess of the proposed pay line. However, it is also important to consider 

other employees to determine any further long term implications.  

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 17 - 

 

6.22  From the total employee complement of 443, 32 are red circled.  When red circles are 

removed from the analysis 111 employees will lose headroom to some extent this reflects 

the significant reduction in the number of grades and the removal of linked and review of 

career grades which are often not supported by job evaluation at every level of the existing 

grade. 131 employees will gain headroom as a result of the proposed structure.    To some 

extent this reflects the significant reduction in the number of grades and the removal of 

linked and review of career grades which are often not supported by job evaluation at every 

level of the existing grade. A further 152 employees are either unaffected by the overall 

proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 Allowances 

 

7.1 The national agreements also allow Councils to consider any potential changes to terms and 
conditions including the allowances currently paid to employees in addition to basic pay. 

 
7.2 In terms of changing any allowances a basic principle has been established in that any 

allowances that are currently paid that are now accounted for by the evaluation process will 
be removed and not protected.  

 
7.3  Changes to any allowances are not currently within the scope of this impact assessment.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 18 - 

 

8 Gender Pay Gap 

 

8.1 Having undertaken the analysis described above it is essential that there is an analysis of the 

impact on the gender pay gap. A number of analyses have been undertaken: 

 

 Comparison of current basic pay to proposed basic pay. 

 Comparison of current Total contractual pay to proposed contractual pay.  

 

8.2 The analysis has been based on the proposed grading structure and the attached tables include a 

figure showing female earnings as a percentage of male earnings. The calculations have been 

based on averaged full time annualised pay rates. These tables indicate the gender pay gap for 

each individual grade as well as showing the gender pay gap for the total workforce (based on 

total employees and average pay) in accordance with nationally recognised calculations. 

Significant patterns of difference i.e. 3.00% or more have been highlighted in yellow and 

significant pay gaps i.e. 5.00% or more have been highlighted in red throughout the report in 

accordance with the advice of the Equalities and Human Rights Commission 

 

TABLE: Analysis of current and proposed basic pay by grade/JE points (excluding protection pay) 

Proposed 
Grade 

Number 
of 

Females 

Number of 
Males 

Current 
Average 
Female 

Current 
Average 

Male 

Female 
Current 
Pay as a 

% of 
Males 

Proposed 
Average 
Female 

Proposed 
Average 

Male 

Female 
Proposed 
Pay as a 

% of 
Males 

Grade 2 9 3 15,207 15,207 100.00% 15,207 15,207 100.00% 

Grade 3 65 14 16,486 16,451 100.21% 16,608 16,179 102.66% 

Grade 4 64 6 18,150 18,806 96.51% 18,144 18,806 96.48% 

Grade 5 101 17 21,500 20,548 104.63% 21,384 20,827 102.68% 

Grade 6 39 52 23,956 22,796 105.09% 23,809 23,196 102.64% 

Grade 7 28 9 28,502 26,728 106.64% 28,306 26,835 105.48% 

Grade 8 24 4 30,762 30,935 99.44% 30,694 30,935 99.22% 

Grade 9 4   35,557   0.00% 34,209   0.00% 

Grade 10 3 1 39,296 40,217 97.71% 39,296 40,217 97.71% 

Grand 
Total 

337 106 21,579 21,962 98.26% 21,513 22,176 97.01% 

 

8.3 If each grade is reviewed in its own right there is a visible narrowing of pay inequality 

through the revised structure with the exception of grade 4 and 8. The overall gender pay 

gap has increased slightly from Female pay being 98.26% of male pay to 97.01%. In terms of 

the future gender pay gap, it would be expected that this will continue to reduce on the 

basis that all employees will progress through their grade and that all new employees, 

irrespective of gender, will start at the bottom of the proposed pay grade. However, it is 

recommended that this is regularly monitored as part of the on-going equal pay audit 

process to ensure that the gap does continue to reduce. 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 19 - 

 

 

8.4 In terms of current basic pay against the proposed structure it is clear that male employee 

earnings would be considered ‘significantly’ higher than female earnings in grade 4. Female 

earnings are significantly higher than males in grades 6 and 7. This is based on guidance from 

the Equalities and Human Rights Commission that anything over 5% should be investigated 

further. In the proposed structured based on the assimilation arrangements the grade 7 is 

still  greater than 5.00%  however grades 4 and 7 are showing an improvement in the gender 

pay gap by grade.  

 

8.5 Based on the proposed structure and the agreed assimilation process that all green circle 

employees move to the minimum of their new grade (but excluding protection payments) it 

is clear that the differences in pay on a grade by grade basis have been reduced (with the 

exception of grade 4 as stated in section 8.4). The overall gender pay gap has reduced 

slightly with female basic pay moving from 98.26% to 97.01% of male pay. This is 

significantly below the National Average pay gap of 80.9% (2014). 

 

9 Proximity Analysis 

 

9.1 An analysis has been undertaken to assess the impact of the proposed grade boundaries 

used to determine each grade. This analysis has been based on all jobs that are either 12 

points below the grade above or above the grade below based on the value of factor levels 

in the NJC scheme. The purpose of this is to identify if the grade lines have been set in such a 

way that they potentially discriminate in favour or against specific groups of employees. 

 

 9.2 It is equally important in such an analysis to be mindful of the overall approach and 

processes that have been taken towards the review. These have been outlined in detail 

elsewhere in the report and it is clear that the process has been undertaken jointly with the 

trade unions who have been involved throughout the review in both the evaluation and 

moderation of job scores. It is not therefore suggested that the evaluation score of a 

particular job or the final rank order is incorrect as the purpose of this stage of the report is 

to consider where the grade lines have been placed. 

 

9.3 It is evident from the overall rank order that there very few obvious places to set grade lines 

at natural break points. The NJC scheme like many others also creates a continuum of scores 

whereby the point’s difference between one job and the next is significantly less than one 

factor. This creates a situation whereby there is no natural clustering across the full range of 

evaluations which reduces the ability to draw grade lines at natural cluster points. Inevitably 

this leads to some jobs being in close proximity to the proposed grade line but should not be 

interpreted as there being any issue with the evaluation outcome.  

 

9.4  The rationale for the grade lines being placed in their current positions is to reflect the same 

points to grade boundaries as neighbouring Bromsgrove District Council. This is an 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 20 - 

 

organisational decision based on the same job evaluation scheme being used and the 

increasing requirement for shared services between the two organisations.    

 

9.5  The scatter graph below shows jobs with more than 5 incumbents or higher populated roles 

and where the roles sit in relation to the grade boundaries. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 21 - 

 

 

9.6 

 

The table below shows the distribution of Red, Green and White circles by gender for the 

highly populated roles. 

 

 

Percentage of Gender by Green, Red and White Circles in Jobs with more than 5 employees 

Gender Total Green % of  Red % of Gender White % of  

    Circles Total  Circles Total Circles Total 

Females 179 17 9.50% 10 5.59% 152 84.92% 

Males 61 11 18.03% 0 0 50 81.97% 

Overall 240 28 11.67% 10 4.17% 202 84.17% 

 

 

 

 

9.7 A detailed table for each grade showing upward and downward proximity is below. The 

tables show the number of jobs less than 12 points of the grade above or below and list any 

job with 5 or more occupants. Where there is a predominant gender (more than 75%) the 

table is highlighted in blue for predominantly male roles and pink for predominantly female 

roles. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 22 - 

 

 

 

 

Job ID Job Title 
Proposed 
Grade Score Service F M 

Grand 
Total 

Points from 
Grade 
Below 

Points from 
Grade 
Above Gender 

  

Grade 'Grade 10' Starts at 675 Points 

Grade 'Grade 9' Starts at 612 Points 

A1355 HR & OD Adviser (3.6 FTE) Grade 8 550 
BUSINESS TRANSFORMA 
& OD 7   7 1   Female Only 

Grade 'Grade 8' Starts at 550 Points 

Grade 'Grade 7' Starts at 493 Points 

A753 Benefit Officer Grade 6 446 CUSTOMER SERVICES 11 1 12 1   Male and Female 

Grade 'Grade 6' Starts at 446 Points 

A317 
Rent/Welfare Officer - DESKTOP 
EVALUATION Grade 5 443 HOUSING SERVICES 5   5   3 Female Only 

A1773 Revenues Officer SS Grade 5 404 CUSTOMER SERVICES 9   9 12   Female Only 

A326 Customer Service Adviser Grade 5 400 CUSTOMER SERVICES 9   9 8   Female Only 

A217 
Control Centre Operator - DESKTOP 
EVALUATION Grade 5 397 COMMUNITY SERVICES 15 7 22 5   Male and Female 

Grade 'Grade 5' Starts at 393 Points 

A1845 REPAIRS SERVICE ADMINSTRATOR Grade 4 348 HOUSING SERVICES 6 1 7 8   Male and Female 

Grade 'Grade 4' Starts at 341 Points 

A297 Care & Social Support Assistant Grade 3 338 HOUSING SERVICES 12   12   3 Female Only 

Grade 'Grade 3' Starts at 290 Points 

A214 Cleaner Grade 2 279 CUSTOMER SERVICES 6 3 9   11 Male and Female 

            

 



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 23 - 

 

 

10 Policies 

 

10.1 As part of a review of this nature it is inevitable that a number of policy issues will arise 

which need to be addressed. It is also essential that the job evaluation arrangements that 

have developed as part of the review are embodied in the Council’s future pay and grading 

arrangements and therefore any future policy or procedural reviews should be agreed 

through the Council’s collective bargaining process.   

 

 Pay Protection 

  

10.2 The principal issue usually associated with pay protection for those employees whose pay, as 

a result of the change in pay structure. The Council has proposed pay protection at 100% for 

24 months. Excluded from the protected pay are any elements which are incorporated into 

the job evaluation score outcome.  

 

10.3 Whilst this could be considered to be a reasonable period over which to move to the new 

pay structure and allow employees to adjust to a potential change in earnings, this is always 

a contentious issue and frequently subject to developments in case law. The above decision 

may warrant further Legal advice in light of Court of Appeal decisions and advice from 

Counsel. 

 

10.4 It is also clear that the new pay and grading structure will apply to all new employees from 

the date of their appointment. Although existing employees undertaking the same role 

maybe in receipt of pay protection in a limited number of cases it is important that the 

former pay arrangements are not applied to new employees.  

 

 

 

 

 

Market Supplements 

 

10.5 Having undertaken a significant review of pay and conditions, there is always the potential 

that there could be a detrimental effect on the ability to recruit and retain staff in the future. 

Any change in pay levels is not necessarily a reflection of the need to introduce a market 

element to pay, but consideration of such arrangement is needed.  

11 Future Monitoring 

 

11.1 The gender pay gap is likely to reduce as employees move through the proposed pay grade 

for their job. It should be noted that as a result of the Council’s proposals all employees are 

employed on an incremental grade and therefore can progress through the grade for their 

job.  



 
 

Client Confidential 
- 24 - 

 

 

 

11.2  As part of its future arrangements Redditch should undertake regular equal pay audits in 

conjunction with the trade unions to ensure that the new pay and grading and job 

evaluation arrangements are maintained. This process should also identify further changes 

in the gender pay gap and recommend further action if required. 

 

 

12.  Conclusion 

 

12.1 The proposed pay structure improves the gender pay gap on a grade by grade basis in the 

majority of the grades. The overall gender pay increases slightly from Female pay being 

98.26% of male pay to 97.01%. As employees progress through the structure with annual 

increments the gap will narrow even further on a grade by grade basis.  

12.2 The application of the JE process and design of the grading structure is acceptable and 

demonstrates a robust approach to the development and implementation of the new 

structure.  

12.3  The grading structure and development of a pay model was a joint exercise with the Trade 

unions with understanding of the organisational hierarchies, local arrangements with 

Bromsgrove and placement of grade lines.  

 

 


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Job Evaluation
	Appendix 1  2015 pay model JE RBC Exec 071215
	Redditch EIA 20152011 to exec 071215


